
 

 

 

 
 

CITY OF SALISBURY 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

 

September 27, 2021                                       6:00 p.m. 
         Government Office Building, Room 301, Salisbury, Maryland and Zoom Video Conferencing   

 
   Times shown for agenda items are estimates only. 

 
 

6:00 p.m. CALL TO ORDER 
  
6:01 p.m. WELCOME/ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLEDGE  
  
6:02 p.m. SILENT MEDITATION   
  
6:03 p.m. ADOPTION OF LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
  
6:04 p.m. CONSENT AGENDA- City Clerk Kimberly Nichols 

• September 7, 2021 Work Session Minutes 
• September 13, 2021 Legislative Session Minutes 
• Resolution No. 3124- to approve the reappointment of Alexander McRae to the Bicycle  

& Pedestrian Advisory Committee for term ending October 2024 
• Resolution No. 3125- to approve the reappointment of Jane S.W. Messenger to the 

Historic District Commission for term ending October 2024 
• Resolution No. 3126- to approve the appointment of Leigh Yanus to the Zoo                

Commission for term ending September 2024 
  
6:08 p.m. RESOLUTION- City Administrator Julia Glanz 
 • Resolution No. 3127- authorizing the City of Salisbury’s Comprehensive Connection 

Charges to be waived for the development of 117-119 West Main Street 
 • Resolution No. 3128- authorizing the Mayor to enter into, on behalf of the City of 

Salisbury, an agreement with St. Peters Episcopal Church and Lodge Wicomico No. 91 
AF & AM for the City of Salisbury’s construction and installation of a handicap access 
ramp at the rear entrance of the Downtown Salisbury Visitor Center Building and 
other matters relating thereto 

  
6:15 p.m. PUBLIC HEARING- East Lincoln Avenue - M&L Rentals, LLP Annexation- City Administrator            

Julia Glanz 
 • Resolution No. 3105- proposing the annexation to the City of Salisbury of certain area                   

        of land contiguous to and binding upon the Corporate Limit of the City of Salisbury to                 
        be known as “East Lincoln Avenue – M & L Rentals, LLP Annexation” beginning for the   
        same point at a corner of the existing Corporate Limits Line of the City of Salisbury, MD,   
        being near the northerly right of way line of East Lincoln Avenue and also being near                          
        the southwesterly corner of the land of M & L Rentals, LLP, being known as Lot A  
        containing 0.245 acres, more or less. 



 • Resolution No. 3106- approving the annexation plan for the annexation known as               
“East Lincoln Avenue – M & L Rentals, LLP Annexation” 

   
6:24 p.m. ORDINANCES- City Attorney Michael Sullivan 
 • Ordinance No. 2681- 2nd reading- approving an amendment of the City’s Grant Fund 

Budget to reallocate budgeted matching funds from other grant projects to the Zoo 
Special Events Pavilion, Phase 2 project 

• Ordinance No. 2682- 2nd reading- approving an amendment of the City’s General                 
Capital Project Fund budget to reallocate funding for the Zoo Administrative Office               
Space project 

 • Ordinance No. 2683- 1st reading- approving an amendment of the City of Salisbury’s    
FY22 General Fund budget and the Grant Fund budget to allocate funding from the     
Community Foundation of the Eastern Shore and General Fund grant match for 
maintenance of the bandstand and bridge in the City Park 

 • Ordinance No. 2685- 1st reading- to amend Chapter 8.08 Brush, Weeds and Obnoxious 
Growth to include the definition & requirements of Meadow Cultivation and to allow               
for the cultivation of meadows in the City of Salisbury, Maryland 

 • Ordinance No. 2686- 1st reading- authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with 
the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development for the purpose of accepting 
additional Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds in the amount of 
$17,796.00, and to approve a budget amendment to the grant fund to appropriate 
such CDBG funds for the projects outlined in the 2021 CDBG Action Plan 

 • Ordinance No. 2687- 1st reading- approving an amendment of the City’s FY22 General 
Fund budget and the Capital Project Fund budget to allocate funding for the Poplar Hill 
ADA Ramp and Bathroom Conversion Project 

 • Ordinance No. 2688- 1st reading- approving an amendment of the city of Salisbury’s              
FY22 General Fund budget for the addition of the position of Special Assistant for 
Intergovernmental Affairs 

  
6:50 p.m. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
6:55 p.m. ADMINISTRATION and COUNCIL COMMENTS 
  
7:00 p.m. ADJOURNMENT 
  
  

 

Copies of the agenda items are available for review in the City                   
Clerk’s Office, Room 305 – City/County Government Office Building,                             
410-548-3140 or on the City’s website www.salisbury.md. City 
Council Meetings are conducted in Open Session unless  otherwise                  
indicated.  All or part of the Council’s  meetings can be held in                     
Closed Session under the authority of the Maryland Open Meetings 
Law, Annotated Code of Maryland General Provisions Article                                      
§ 3-305(b) by vote of the City Council.  

                                                                
                                                                                                                                                                             

                                                                     
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.salisbury.md/


NEXT COUNCIL MEETING – OCTOBER 11, 2021 
 

•    Resolution No._- to re-appoint Dr. Katherine Jones to Disability Advisory Committee 
• Ordinance No. 2683- 2nd reading- approving an amendment of the City of Salisbury’s    FY22 General Fund budget 

and the Grant Fund budget to allocate funding from the     Community Foundation of the Eastern Shore and 
General Fund grant match for maintenance of the bandstand and bridge in the City Park 

• Ordinance No. 2685- 2nd reading- to amend Chapter 8.08 Brush, Weeds and Obnoxious Growth to include the 
definition & requirements of Meadow Cultivation and to allow for the cultivation of meadows in the City of 
Salisbury, Maryland 

• Ordinance No. 2686- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with the U.S. Department of 
Housing & Urban Development for the purpose of accepting additional Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds in the amount of $17,796.00, and to approve a budget amendment to the grant fund to appropriate 
such CDBG funds for the projects outlined in the 2021 CDBG Action Plan 

• Ordinance No. 2687- 2nd reading- approving an amendment of the City’s FY22 General Fund budget and the Capital 
Project Fund budget to allocate funding for the Poplar Hill ADA Ramp and Bathroom Conversion Project 

• Ordinance No. 2688- 2nd reading- approving an amendment of the city of Salisbury’s FY22 General Fund budget 
for the addition of the position of Special Assistant for Intergovernmental Affairs 

 
 
 
 

 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88186172560 

Meeting ID: 881 8617 2560 
Phone: 1.301.715.8592 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Posted 9/23/21 
Revised 9/27/21 (Removed Ord. 2684) 

 
 
 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88186172560


September 7, 2021 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
1 | P a g e  

 
 

CITY OF SALISBURY 1 
WORK SESSION  2 

SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 3 
 4 

Public Officials Present 5 
 6 

Mayor Jacob R. Day (left at 5:03 p.m.) Council Vice-President Muir Boda 
Councilwoman Angela M. Blake Councilwoman Michele Gregory 
Councilwoman April Jackson (arrived 4:38 p.m.)  

 7 
Public Officials Absent 8 

 9 
Council President John “Jack” R. Heath 10 

 11 
In Attendance 12 

 13 
City Administrator Julia Glanz, Department of Infrastructure & Development (DID) Director 14 
Amanda Pollack, Business Development Director Laura Soper, City Attorney Michael Sullivan, 15 
City Clerk Kimberly Nichols, and members of the Public. 16 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 17 
On September 7, 2021 the Salisbury City Council convened in a hybrid Work Session (in 18 
person and on Zoom Conferencing Video) at 4:30 p.m. in Council Chambers with 19 
Council Vice-President Muir Boda presiding. The following is a synopsis of the topics 20 
discussed.  21 
 22 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation- Somerset Natural Gas Project Update 23 
 24 
Department of Infrastructure and Development (DID) Director Amanda Pollack provided 25 
the monthly update. As of August, 99.9% of the pipeline installation was complete  26 
within the City limits, with line testing and activation remaining to be done. She 27 
suggested this could be the last monthly pipeline update. 28 
 29 
Mayor Day said Chesapeake Utilities was well represented at a Rail Trail meeting and 30 
they indicated they perform some site improvements in anticipation of the Folk Festival.  31 
 32 
Ms. Blake discussed seeking permission to place City scaping on the property. Mayor 33 
Day said that they would not ask to do anything on someone else’s property adjacent to 34 
their right-a-way. Ms. Pollack said they were not trying to purchase property from 35 
Northrop Southern but were trying to work with the adjacent other property owners 36 
because there was a strip owned by Rinnier. 37 
 38 
Budget Amendment for Grant Match associated with the Zoo Special Events 39 
Pavilion- Phase 2 40 
  41 
Ms. Pollack reported the City had received Program Open Space (POS) funds for Phase I 42 
of the Zoo Pavilion Project which included renovations to the restrooms. This year’s 43 
budget ordinance included a match for POS funds for a project they requested for the 44 
existing tennis courts, but was not approved through POS. They received positive 45 



September 7, 2021 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
2 | P a g e  

 
 

feedback for Phase II of the Zoo Pavilion Project. She requested to reallocate the grant 46 
match for the Tennis Court Project to the Zoo Pavilion Project- Phase 2.  47 
 48 
Council reached unanimous consensus to advance the legislation to legislative agenda. 49 
 50 
Budget Amendment for Capital Projects Funds for the Zoo Administrative Office 51 
Space Project 52 
 53 
Ms. Pollack reported that DID was working with a vendor to furnish and install a new 54 
trailer for the Zoo Administrative office. The prices were over budget partly due to 55 
needing to comply with the floodplain regulations. The project was funded through a 56 
bond allocation, and this project was the last item on the bond. She requested moving all 57 
of the available interest revenue to the project to also cover modifications to the existing 58 
fence, site preparation, utility connections and construction of the ADA ramp.  59 
 60 
Council reached unanimous consensus to move forward with the budget amendment. 61 
 62 
Draft Port Feasibility Study 63 
 64 
Business Development Director Laura Soper reported on the Port Feasibility Study, 65 
which was nearing completion after several months’ work with Century Engineering and 66 
CPCS Transcom. She introduced Eric Oberhart, Senior Consultant with CPCS Transcom 67 
who joined the Work Session via Zoom.  68 
 69 
Mr. Oberhart provided an overview of the report which would be distributed later in the 70 
week and explained the objective was to get a better understanding of whether or not a 71 
multi-user port facility could be economically and physically feasible in Salisbury, and if 72 
feasible, what potential benefits could be expected. Mr. Oberhart’s presentation has been 73 
included as part of the minutes. 74 
 75 
Mayor Day shared that Senators Cardin and Van Hollan stated they would never let the 76 
dredging money go to waste, and there was a lot of support from the federal delegation 77 
for keeping the port funded. The City was working on the acquisition of land in the 78 
North Prong area, but something that needed to eventually be addressed was that the City 79 
would have to remove the active users out of the property that the City wanted. Mayor 80 
Day thought that opposition would be heard from the residential land users from across 81 
the river regarding the scale of the waterside infrastructure,  82 
 83 
Ms. Jackson asked about other options the North Prong redevelopment area could 84 
include. Mr. Oberhart said it could be recreational, commercial, or residential, or a 85 
combination of all three. She asked if the recreational was simply because there could be 86 
contamination. He said that was not a consideration as they were focused primarily on  87 
heavy engineering and planning work on the potential facility developed on the main 88 
branch of the river.   89 
 90 
Ms. Blake was concerned that redevelopment could potentially increase truck traffic 91 
necessitating a discussion on how the impact could be offset.  92 



September 7, 2021 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
3 | P a g e  

 
 

 93 
Mr. Boda said that both of the senators were doing their part in ensuring the Army Corps 94 
of Engineers was dredging, and there were things the City had to do while being aware 95 
of the residents’ concerns and looking to the future. 96 
 97 
Fortune Telling License Legislation  98 
 99 
City Attorney Michael Sullivan reported that following the last meeting held to approve 100 
the Fortune Telling license legislation it was clear that Council wished to pare down and 101 
streamline the licensing process. The process was made very straight-forward limiting as 102 
much of Administration’s time and attention to similar other City licenses. If one wished 103 
to engage in the business of fortune telling, a Fortune Telling license was simply needed. 104 
Definitions were removed from the legislation. It was possible that individuals with such 105 
licenses would be called to other locations to perform fortune telling.  106 
 107 
Council appreciated the simplistic nature of the section and would approve the 108 
legislation on Monday, September 13, 2021 for second reading, as amended. 109 
 110 
Council Comments 111 
 112 
Ms. Glanz said the Folk Festival was well underway and the weather was looking great. 113 
 114 
Ms. Jackson encouraged residents to be safe and wear their masks. 115 
 116 
Ms. Blake encouraged everyone to volunteer for the Folk Festival. If healthy enough, she asked 117 
everyone to donate blood. 118 
 119 
Ms. Gregory asked those not vaccinated to please get their vaccinations. She was looking 120 
forward to the Folk Festival. 121 
 122 
Mr. Boda asked if there was enough beer and wine this year, and Ms. Glanz assured there was. 123 
The next big event was the Average Joe’s ½k. 124 
 125 
Adjournment 126 
 127 
With no further business to discuss, the Work Session was adjourned at 5:27 p.m.  128 
 129 
____________________________________ 130 
City Clerk 131 
 132 
____________________________________ 133 
Council President 134 



September 7, 2021

Presentation to Salisbury City Council

Salisbury Port Feasibility Study



2

Project Objective

Is a multi-user port facility 
economically and physically 
feasible?

If feasible, what are its potential 
benefits for Salisbury and Delmarva 
businesses?

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Answer two questions



3

Port Facilities



Barge or water shipping is best for high-
volume, lower-value commodities

1.03 million tons handled in 2019

Almost all tonnage (99%+) is inbound

One million tons is important threshold for 
US Army Corps of Engineers’ dredging 
support on Wicomico River

About 1,000 barge or towboat trips in 2019

4

Port Operations
A significant receiver of fuel, aggregate, and agricultural products for communities 
across the region

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2.0

M
illi

on
s 

of
 T

on
s

Fuels Sand and Gravel Corn and Soybeans Other



5

Opportunities for Port Development

Strengths Weaknesses

• Existing facilities and “captive” traffic base
• Geographic location – centrally located

• Ongoing dredging is required
• Limited vessel size and traffic capacity
• City lacks experience with port development

Opportunities Threats

• Growth in existing port cargoes
• Relocation of some facilities: opening up North 

Prong for higher, better uses
• Creating room for shipyard expansion (long term)
• Increased federal funding for infrastructure

• Declining tonnage – loss of dredging support
• Inability to recoup port development costs
• Future development at competitor ports (ex: 

Seaford)

Key Opportunity: growth in existing cargoes
Key weakness and threat: need for ongoing dredging support



Port develop can provide these public 
benefits:

• Enable growth at existing businesses
• Preserve cost-effective and energy-

efficient supply chains for local 
businesses and residents

• Preserve activity and employment in 
other water-related businesses

• Support community goals, such as 
North Prong redevelopment

Port development should not be 
expected to increase the diversity of 
businesses in Salisbury

6

Value of Port Engagement for Salisbury
What port development can and can’t do for Salisbury:

Source: Envision Salisbury Downtown Master Plan 



Private parties have not engaged port development because of uncertainty:
• Low return on individual firms’ private investments
• Lack of cooperation or communication between stakeholders
• Uncertainty about city’s plans for port development or port areas

The City can play a role in information sharing and coordination - reducing obstacles for private port stakeholders

7

Barriers to Port Development
Development needs information and coordination to be realized



8

How can Salisbury Support Port Development? 
Based on the public benefits, the City of 
Salisbury should support port development 
in four ways:Policies

City guidance to support 
achievement of other 
recommendations.

Partnerships
Collaboration between 

public and private entities is 
key to development.

Projects
Infrastructure-related 

projects comprise the most  
tangible category of 
recommendations.

Programs
Details for port authority 

governance to guide future 
development

Tools for 
Engagement

Policies
Salisbury should adopt a formal maritime policy that clearly defines the City’s 
role in supporting the maritime system in Salisbury and the goals that its actions 
are intended to achieve.

Partnerships
Salisbury should create a port administration or authority organization and 
provide sponsorship to private companies applying for state or federal grants. 

Programs
A multi-user marine facility accessible to all users requires public ownership, 
which also then mandates development of a port administration to manage the 
infrastructure and coordinate between users. 

Projects
Secure grant support and private agreements to support construction of 
cargo handling, site, and access road improvements at site on Marine Road. 



9

Port Board: paid or volunteer advisory panel, subject 
matter experts in maritime operations, engineering, 
economic development, environmental policy, etc..

Administration: 1-2 paid staff to manage port 
operations and conduct business development

Stevedore: probably not necessary in this situation, 
port tenants would conduct own cargo handling

Firewall between board, and users/carriers. No users 
or elected officials on board.  

Potential revenue sources:
• Long and short-term storage leases/fees
• Port Dues and Docking Fees: 1x per call
• Wharfage: cost per ton of cargo

Port Authority Concept
Authority guides port development and operations, prevents conflicts of interest 



10

Proposed Facility
Multi-user port facility to support aggregates and agricultural products 

Site Improvements
• Grading
• Roadway and Access
• Admin Building
• Scales
• Maintenance Building
• No Material Handling Equipment

Marine Work
• 2 Piers
• River Cells 
• Larger Pier on West End for Additional 

Materials

Marine Road Work
• Roadway Widening
• Drainage
• Accommodates On-Street Parking



11

Investments and Impacts Benefits and Opportunities
Cost of investment

• $22.8 million for infrastructure
• $271,000/year for port administration
• Operating costs and some capital cost would be 

recouped from terminal users
• Grant support for initial infrastructure investment

Expected tonnage increase
• Low: + 50,000 tons inbound
• High: + 125,000 tons inbound

Expected truck traffic increase
• Low: + 2,000 local truck trips
• High: + 4,700 local truck trips

Sustain dredging support – avoid shutdown impacts
• Barge service replaces 38,000 – 40,700 longer-

distance truck trips each year. 
• Higher emissions, spill rates, infrastructure 

damage, and shipping costs for truck/rail
• $4 million/year in dredging support from USACE

Preserve employment at water-related firms

Provide expansion opportunities for local businesses

Redevelopment of North Prong
• Up to $12.8 million in property value increase, or
• ~$100,000 in additional tax revenue. 

Investment, Impacts, and Opportunities

Presenter
Presentation Notes
For reference, Salisbury Pkwy has 1,974 trucks per dayLow case: 5 trucks per day (assuming trucks travel everyday) High case: 18 more trucks per day (assuming trucks only travel on weekdays)Low case: 33 more bargesHigh case: 83 more barges



12

Thank You!

Eric Oberhart
eoberhart@cpcstrans.com

Kristen Hartpence
khartpence@cpcstrans.com

Contact Information

mailto:eoberhart@cpcstrans.com
mailto:khartpence@cpcstrans.com


13

Extra Slides



14

Estimated Port Administration Costs
Expense Amount

General Manager Salary $90,000 
Assistant Salary $40,000 
Staff Benefits (20%) $26,000 
Insurance (Terminal Operation Liability) $12,000 
Insurance (D&O) $2,000 
Utilities $40,000 
Cleaning $10,000 
Garbage $7,500 
Office $8,500 
Travel Expense and Representation $10,000 
Security Users pay
Board of Directors Volunteer
Maintenance TBD, Users?
Consultation Fees (Legal, Engineering) $25,000 
Total $271,000

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Does the City have any feedback on salaries, benefits etc?



15

Summary of high-level costs

Expense Amount

Site Improvements $3,062,582.87

Marine Work $17,402,525.00

Marine Road Improvements $2,328,661.36

Total ROM Construction Costs $22,793,769.23

Site Improvements

• Grading
• Roadway and Access
• Admin Building
• Scales
• Maintenance Building
• No Material Handling Equipment

Marine Work

• 2 Piers
• River Cells 
• Larger Pier on West End for Additional Materials

Marine Road Work

• Roadway Widening
• Drainage
• Accommodates On-Street Parking

~$22.8 million needed for new terminal development, majority for marine infrastructure:



16

Summary of high-level costs: Marine Layout
Marine Work

•2 Piers
•River Cells 
•Larger Pier on West 
End for Additional 
Materials



17

Summary of high-level costs: Marine Road
Marine Road Work

•Roadway Widening
•Drainage
•Accommodates On-
Street Parking



GHG/
Pollutant

Truck Equivalent Impacts Rail Equivalent Impacts
Barge Impacts

Low High Low High Low High

No-Port Scenario
NOx 76,960 82,435 450,162 482,187 13,705 14,680
PM 35,844 38,394 12,651 13,551 234,042 250,692
CO2 151,810,992 162,610,992 23,193,346 24,843,346 17,395,010 18,632,510

Growth Scenario
NOx 3,650 9,125 21,350 53,375 650 1,625
PM 1,700 4,250 600 1,500 11,100 27,750
CO2 7,200,000 18,000,000 1,100,000 2,750,000 825,000 2,062,500

Truck, Rail, and Barge Emission Impacts (grams per mile)



19

Potential Benefits
Many benefits are related to prevented impacts or creation of new opportunities to be leveraged later:

Preserving maritime access through sustained tonnage: maintaining maritime tonnage preserves federal funding 
for dredging, which is a substantial cost saving to the City and port users (up to $ 4 million per year).

Avoiding roadway and environmental impacts from loss of navigation

• Barge service replaces 38,000 to 40,700 medium-long distance truck trips in area each year
• Shipping equivalent tonnages by truck or railroad would generate substantially higher air emissions in region, as 

well as increased likelihood for petroleum spills. 

Impacts on land use: Relocation of existing port facilities would free up the North Prong for further redevelopment or 
preservation, which could lead to increased land values and tax revenues. 

• Up to $12.8 million in property value increase, or
• ~$100,000 in additional tax revenue. 

Preservation of employment: Limited direct new job creation (1-10), but preserves current waterborne-related 
employment, and greater opportunities for long-term job creation at Chesapeake Shipbuilding related to shipyard 
expansion



September 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  1 | P a g e  

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 1 
 2 
REGULAR MEETING (COUNCIL CHAMBERS AND ZOOM)   SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 3 
 4 

PUBLIC OFFICIALS PRESENT 5 
 6 

President John “Jack” R. Heath     Council Vice-President Muir Boda    7 
 Councilwoman Angela M. Blake    Councilwoman April Jackson 8 

 9 
PUBLIC OFFICIALS ABSENT 10 

 11 
Mayor Jacob R. Day 12 

Councilwoman Michele Gregory 13 
 14 

IN ATTENDANCE 15 
 16 
City Administrator Julia Glanz, Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow, Department of 17 
Infrastructure & Development Director Amanda Pollack, Fire Chief John Tull, Senior Buyer 18 
Michael Lowe, Assistant City Clerk Julie English, City Attorney Michael Sullivan, members of 19 
the press and Public 20 
****************************************************************************** 21 
CITY INVOCATION – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 22 
  23 
The City Council met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. in a hybrid meeting (in person and on Zoom 24 
Conferencing Video). Council President John R. “Jack” Heath called the meeting to order and 25 
invited Pastor Maggie Gillespie from Wicomico Presbyterian Church to the podium to provide 26 
the invocation, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 27 
 28 
PRESENTATIONS 29 
 30 
Equal Justice Incentive Student Essays 31 
 32 
City Administrator Julia Glanz announced the winners of the Equal Justice Incentive (EJI) 33 
Student Essays. Trey Walk, Project Manager at EJI, shared about his involvement in the contest 34 
and acknowledged the efforts of the participating students. Mrs. Glanz then recognized the Chair 35 
of the Human Rights Advisory Committee, Stephen Feliciano, as well as the Salisbury Memorial 36 
Lynching Task Force members for their role in the essay contest.  37 
 38 
As the main point of contact in Salisbury for the student essays, Mrs. Glanz invited James 39 
Yamakawa to the podium. Mr. Yamakawa applauded the essay writers and encouraged them to 40 
continue their efforts.  41 
 42 
The top four winners of the essay contest received a swag bag, a certificate, a plaque, and a 43 
check (ranging in value from $500 to $2,500). The winners were announced: Alaynah Martin in 44 
4th place, Ty’Jah Butler in 3rd place, Ian Hyland in 2nd place, and Madjesca Loudine Limage in 45 
1st place. Miss Limage read her essay from the podium.  46 



September 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  2 | P a g e  

Proclamation – National Suicide Prevention Month 47 
 48 
Mrs. Glanz then presented a proclamation in recognition of National Suicide Prevention Month.   49 
Following the reading of the proclamation, Mrs. Glanz remembered former Officer Aaron 50 
“Bull” Hudson. 51 
 52 
ADOPTION OF LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 53 
 54 
Ms. Jackson moved, Mrs. Blake seconded, and the motion was passed with a vote of 4-0 to 55 
approve the legislative agenda as presented. 56 
 57 
CONSENT AGENDA – presented by Assistant City Clerk Julie English 58 
 59 
The Consent Agenda, consisting of the following items, was approved unanimously (4-0) on a 60 
motion and seconded by Mr. Boda and Ms. Jackson, respectively: 61 
 62 

• August 2, 2021 Work Session Minutes 63 
• August 9, 2021 Legislative Session Minutes 64 
• August 9, 2021 Closed Session Minutes 65 
• August 16, 2021 Work Session Minutes 66 
• August 23, 2021 Legislative Session Minutes 67 
• Resolution No. 3120- to approve the appointment of Cody Drinkwater to the Human Rights 68 

Advisory Committee for term ending September 2024 69 
• Resolution No. 3121- to approve the appointment of Kevin M. Utz to the Board of  Zoning 70 

Appeals for term ending August 2024 71 
• Resolution No. 3122- to approve the appointment of Matthias F. Pieplak to the 72 

Sustainability Advisory Committee for term ending September 2024 73 
• Resolution No. 3123- to approve the appointment of Matthias F. Pieplak to the Salisbury 74 

Historic District Commission for term ending September 2024 75 
 76 
AWARD OF BIDS- presented by Senior Buyer Michael Lowe 77 
 78 
The Award of Bids, consisting of the following items, was approved unanimously (4-0) on a 79 
motion and seconded by Mrs. Blake and Ms. Jackson, respectively. 80 
 81 

• Award of Contract 82 
 83 

o ITB A-22-102 City-Wide Street Resurfacing  $1,042,000.00 (base bid amt.) 84 
o RFP A-22-102 Master Lease Agreement/Capital Leases $909,000.00 (FY22 lease amt.) 85 
o ITB A-22-101 Pump Station Wet Well Cleaning  $40,370.00 (FY22 award amt.) 86 

 87 
• Declaration of Surplus 88 

 89 
o Salisbury Police Department- Vehicle 1475  $0.00 90 

 91 
 92 



September 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  3 | P a g e  

ORDINANCES- presented by City Attorney Michael Sullivan 93 
 94 

• Ordinance No. 2676- 2nd reading- to amend Chapter 5.28 – Fortune-telling of the Salisbury 95 
Municipal Code to amend the requirements for fortune-telling 96 

 97 
Ms. Jackson motioned and Mrs. Blake seconded to approve Ordinance No. 2676 for second 98 
reading. 99 
 100 
Ms. Jackson motioned to amend Ordinance No. 2676 as read by Mr. Sullivan.  Mr. Boda 101 
seconded and the vote to amend was unanimously approved. 102 
 103 
Ordinance No. 2676, as amended for second reading, was approved by unanimous vote in 104 
favor.  105 
 106 

• Ordinance No. 2677- 1st reading- to approve an amendment of the City’s Capital Project 107 
Fund Budget to reallocate funding for projects in the FY2014 bond pool 108 
 109 
Ms. Jackson moved, Mr. Boda seconded and the vote was unanimous to approve Ordinance 110 
No. 2677 for second reading. 111 
 112 

• Ordinance No. 2678- 1st reading- to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with the 113 
Community Foundation of the Eastern Shore for the purpose of accepting grant funds in the 114 
amount of $2,000.00, and to approve a budget amendment to the FY2021 Grant Fund to 115 
appropriate funds for the Salisbury-Wicomico Integrated Firstcare Team (SWIFT) 116 
 117 
Mrs. Blake moved, Ms. Jackson seconded and the vote was unanimously approved to pass 118 
Ordinance No. 2677 for second reading. 119 
 120 

• Ordinance No. 2679- 1st reading- to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with the 121 
Community Foundation of the Eastern Shore for the purpose of accepting grant funds in the 122 
amount of $2,000.00, and to approve a budget amendment to the FY2021 Grant Fund to 123 
appropriate funds for the printing/publication of a book of poems written by local poets 124 
 125 
Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Jackson seconded and the vote was unanimous to approve Ordinance 126 
No. 2679 for second reading. 127 
 128 

• Ordinance No. 2680- to eliminate parking meters on Broad Street 129 
 130 

Ms. Jackson moved, Ms. Blake seconded and the vote was unanimous to approve Ordinance 131 
No. 2680 for second reading.  132 
 133 

• Ordinance No. 2681- approving an amendment of the City’s Grant Fund Budget to 134 
reallocate budgeted matching funds from other grant projects to the Zoo Special Events 135 
Pavilion, Phase 2 project 136 

 137 



September 13, 2021 Legislative Session 
  Approved:  
  4 | P a g e  

Ms. Jackson moved, Mr. Boda seconded and the vote was unanimously approved to pass 138 
Ordinance No. 2681 for first reading. 139 

 140 
• Ordinance No. 2682- approving an amendment of the City’s General Capital Project Fund 141 

budget to reallocate funding for the Zoo Administrative Office Space project 142 
 143 

Mrs. Blake moved, Mr. Boda seconded and the vote was unanimous to pass Ordinance No. 144 
2682 for first reading. 145 
 146 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 147 
 148 
In reference to Ordinance No. 2676, a member of the public asked if fortune-tellers were limited to 149 
practicing only at the address listed on the application.  Mr. Heath stated that the license applies to 150 
the individual rather than the location. Mr. Sullivan verified that information. 151 
 152 
ADMINISTRATION AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 153 
 154 
Mrs. Glanz thanked everyone involved in the 80th National Folk Festival (NFF) and shared that 155 
preliminary numbers were in the works. She also announced that the mural on the side of the VFW 156 
building was underway.  Lastly, she stated that the Bird Scooter Program had a record day of use 157 
on Labor Day. 158 
 159 
Ms. Blake echoed the positive comments surrounding the NFF and enjoyed her time volunteering.  160 
She alerted people to the school buses now on the roadways and asked that everyone be cautious of 161 
the children getting on and off them.  Her last request was for those who are healthy enough to 162 
please give blood.  163 
 164 
Mr. Boda enjoyed his time volunteering backstage at the Perdue Stage. He also had the opportunity 165 
to ride a Bird Scooter. It was more challenging than he anticipated. 166 
 167 
Ms. Jackson commended the artist who worked on the mural.  She thanked the City of Salisbury and 168 
VFW for making the project happen.  169 
  170 
President Heath also thanked all of the volunteers for the NFF.  He had fun driving the entertainers 171 
for the third year in a row.  Mr. Heath recognized the efforts of the Public Works staff as well as 172 
Police and Fire. He only received compliments from the public about the City of Salisbury. He 173 
echoed Ms. Blake and encouraged everyone to give blood since we are in a crisis. Lastly, he 174 
encouraged those who could not get over to the VFW to see the mural to go on Facebook and look 175 
at the pictures. 176 
 177 
ADJOURNMENT 178 
 179 
With no further business to discuss, the Legislative Session was adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 180 
 181 
 182 
 183 





RESOLUTION NO. 3124 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is re-appointed to the Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee for the term 4 
ending as indicated. 5 
 6 
  Name      Term Ending 7 
  Alexander McRae    October 2024 8 
   9 
 10 
 11 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 12 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on September ___________, 2021. 13 
 14 
ATTEST: 15 
 16 
 17 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 18 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 19 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 20 
 21 
 22 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 23 
 24 
__________ day of ______, 2021 25 
 26 
 27 
_____________________________ 28 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 29 





RESOLUTION NO. 3125 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is re-appointed to the Historic District Commission for the term ending as 4 
indicated. 5 
 6 
  Name      Term Ending 7 
  Jane S.W. Messenger    October 2024 8 
   9 
 10 
 11 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 12 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on September ___________, 2021. 13 
 14 
ATTEST: 15 
 16 
 17 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 18 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 19 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 20 
 21 
 22 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 23 
 24 
__________ day of ______, 2021 25 
 26 
 27 
_____________________________ 28 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 29 





RESOLUTION NO. 3126 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is appointed to the Zoo Commission for the term ending as indicated. 4 
 5 
  Name      Term Ending 6 
  Leigh Yanus     September 2024 7 
   8 
 9 
 10 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 11 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on September ___________, 2021. 12 
 13 
ATTEST: 14 
 15 
 16 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 17 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 18 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 19 
 20 
 21 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 22 
 23 
__________ day of ______, 2021 24 
 25 
 26 
_____________________________ 27 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 28 



 
 

 

 
To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 
From:  Amanda Pollack, P.E., Director of Infrastructure and Development 
Date: August 23, 2021 
Re:  Resolution – 117-119 W. Main Street Comprehensive Connection Charges Waiver  
             
 
Attached is a letter from SBY Distillery, Corp dated August 14, 2021 which requests consideration for a 
waiver of Comprehensive Connection Charges for the redevelopment of 117-119 West Main Street.  The 
proposed project is to convert the first floor to a restaurant and distillery.  The total request is for a waiver 
of 28 EDUs.  At the current Comprehensive Connection Charges rate of $3,710, the waiver request is 
equivalent to $103,880.00. 
 
Infrastructure and Development has evaluated the eligibility of this project for the waiver program based 
on the criteria established via Ordinance No. 2611.  The project location is within the Central Business 
Zoning District and will consist of redevelopment that is not eligible for an affordable housing waiver.  The 
project does or will comply with all other necessary criteria.  For the public benefit, the developer will 
fund $5,000 towards new street lights along St. Peter’s Street and will fund a bicycle rack. 
 
Attached is a Resolution for consideration to waive the Comprehensive Connection Charges associated 
with the redevelopment of 117-119 West Main Street.  If this waiver is approved, then it will be valid for 
two years from the date of the Resolution. 
 
Unless you or the Mayor has further questions, please forward a copy of this memo, request letter and 
Resolution to the City Council. 
 



SBY Distillery Corp 

318 W. Carroll Street Suite A  

Salisbury, MD 21801 
 

August 14, 2021 

City of Salisbury, Maryland 

Department of Infrastructure & Development 

Attn: Amanda H. Pollack, P.E., Director (apollack@salisbury.md) 125 N. Division Street, 
Room 202 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 

 Re:  SBY DISTILLERY, CORP’s Request for Connection Charge Waiver;   
   Redevelopment of 117-119 W. Main Street Salisbury, MD 21801 

Dear Ms. Pollack: 

On behalf of SBY Distillery, CORP (“SBY Distillery”), please accept this letter as  SBY 
Distillery's formal request to the City of Salisbury for a waiver of the Connection Fees 
associated with SBY Distillery's redevelopment of 117-119 W. Main Street, Salisbury, 
Maryland 21081 (the “Building”). 

As the City is aware, SBY Distillery plans to redevelop the Building by: converting the 
basement and the first floor of 117-119 W. Main Street  into a luxury style restaurant and 
distillery (the “Project”). The Project is on the brink of being permitted for construction. In 
the next few weeks,  SBY Distillery will be submitting  applications for  preliminary 
approval from the City of Salisbury Historic District Commission (the “HDC”) and the 
Salisbury-Wicomico County Planning & Zoning Commission.  

The premise of the project is to create a luxury restaurant and distillery in the heart of the 
city while helping to beautify saint peters street. SBY Distillery would be willing to cover 
the cost of a bicycle stand, as well as up to $5,000 towards the street lights being proposed 
on the street. In addition Davis Strategic agrees to provide a Dumpster within the foot print 
of the building and share this dumpster with neighboring buildings to help solve the issue 
of no trash services in close proximity to the project. SBY distillery also agrees to cover the 
cost of creating a mural on the building to help give people visiting downtown Salisbury 
another chance to see local art work. SBY Distillery will also provide safety lighting on the 
outside of the building to ensure the safest possible walking areas for local residents. We 
will provide outdoor eating/ tables/ canopies to allow people somewhere to sit while they 
tour downtown.  



As part of this project SBY distilling agrees to build with Green Energy practices including 
meeting energy star ratings within the new restaurant/ distillery.  

Pursuant to Ordinance No. 2611, the City created and authorized an “Comprehensive 
Connection Charge Waiver(CCCW)” to reduce the capacity fees assessed against certain 
development and redevelopment projects in the Central Business District, the Riverfront 
Redevelopment Area and the City’s designated Enterprise Zone. This project is located in 
the Central Business District and we will be redeveloping an existing building. Our project 
will feature a distillery, restaurant, and brewery. We expect to create 30 full time and part 
time jobs in downtown Salisbury. The new jobs will include hospitality, event operations, 
restaurant and distillery operations positions. 

SBY Distillery estimates a total of 28 CCCW’s are needed for the Project. Under the City’s 
Comprehensive Connection Charge Waiver program, SBY Distillery is eligible for a waiver 
of the Capacity Fees associated with the CCCW’s allocated for the Project: the Project is 
located within the City’s Incentive Area; and, the Project satisfies all criteria governing the 
City’s waiver of Capacity Fees for development projects undertaken within the Incentive 
Area. Therefore, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 13.04.120 of the City Code, 
SBY Distillery respectfully requests the City waive the Capacity Fees of $84,792.00 assessed 
for the 28 CCCW’ss needed for development of the Project. 

If City staff has any questions or needs additional information regarding the matters 
addressed in this correspondence, please do not hesitate to contact me. On behalf of SBY 
Distillery, thank you for your time and consideration of this request. 

 

Sincerely, 

Bret Davis 

 

 

  



RESOLUTION NO.  3127 1 
 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 3 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF SALISBURY’S COMPREHENSIVE CONNECTION 4 
CHARGES TO BE WAIVED FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 117-119 WEST MAIN 5 
STREET. 6 

 7 
WHEREAS, SBY Distillery, Corp. has requested a waiver of the Comprehensive Connection Charges for the 8 

proposed development of 117-119 West Main Street (the “Project”); and 9 
 10 
WHEREAS, the proposed development is located within the municipal limits of the City of Salisbury (the 11 

“City”) and the Central Business Zoning District; and 12 
 13 
WHEREAS, the City seeks to encourage development and redevelopment in the Central Business Zoning 14 

District; and 15 
 16 
WHEREAS, the City seeks to reduce the Comprehensive Connection Charges for eligible development and 17 

redevelopment in the Central Business Zoning District when specific criteria is met; and 18 
 19 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved a Comprehensive Connection Charge Waiver process under Ordinance 20 

No. 2611 for development in the Central Business Zoning District; and 21 
 22 
WHEREAS, the Project requires a total of 28 Equivalent Dwelling Units of water and sewer service; and 23 
 24 
WHEREAS, the current Comprehensive Connection Charges for one Equivalent Dwelling Unit is $3,710.00; 25 

and 26 
 27 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Connection Charges for 28 Equivalent Dwelling Units is $103,880.00; and 28 
 29 
WHEREAS, the Project meets the waiver eligibility criteria set forth in Ordinance No. 2611 in that: (i) the 30 

Project is located within the Central Business Zoning District; (ii) the Project constitutes new development and/or 31 
revitalization of an existing building; (iii) the Project does not receive a capacity fee waiver for public sponsored or 32 
affordable housing; (iv) the Director of Infrastructure and Development confirms that the Project complies, or will 33 
comply, with all applicable zoning and building code criteria, stormwater management code provisions and all 34 
requirements of the Salisbury Historic District Commission; (v) the Project meets the objectives identified in the 35 
Envision Salisbury Master Plan, adopted via Resolution No. 2600 dated March 17, 2016, as amended; and, (vi) the 36 
Project provides a public benefit by funding public street-scaping elements and public amenities; and 37 

 38 
WHEREAS, the Director of Infrastructure and Development has recommended the waiver of the 39 

Comprehensive Connection Charges for the Project and submitted the aforesaid allocation and waiver request to the 40 
Mayor for approval, which approval has been granted; and 41 

 42 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2611, this Resolution is now ready for review and approval by the 43 

Council of the City of Salisbury.  44 
 45 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, 46 
MARYLAND as follows: 47 

Section 1. The City’s Comprehensive Connection Charge for Twenty-Eight (28) EDUs allocated to the Project 48 
is waived for so long as the project continues to meet the criteria set forth in Ordinance No. 2611.  49 

Section 2. In the event the Project at any time fails to meet the criteria set forth in Ordinance No. 2611, the City 50 
reserves the right to seek payment for the Comprehensive Connection Charge waived herein. 51 



Section 3. The waiver of the Comprehensive Connection Charge granted herein is valid for two (2) years from 52 
the time of the signing of this Resolution.  53 

Section 4. The waiver of the Comprehensive Connection Charge granted herein may be extended for two (2) 54 
one-year terms, if approved in writing by the Director of Infrastructure and Development prior to the expiration of the 55 
term.  56 

Section 5. The Director of Infrastructure and Development may refuse to grant a requested extension if the 57 
Director of Infrastructure and Development finds that the property owner is not making good faith efforts to complete 58 
the project.  59 

Section 6. The Comprehensive Connection Charge waiver granted to SBY Distillery, Corp. by this Resolution 60 
is for the Project (as defined hereinabove) and to the properties located at 117-119 West Main Street. The Comprehensive 61 
Connection Charge waiver granted herein cannot be transferred or assigned by SBY Distillery, Corp. without the prior, 62 
express written consent of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 63 

Section 7.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision of this 64 
Resolution shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 65 

Section 8.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, 66 
paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise 67 
unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, paragraph, 68 
subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this Resolution shall remain and shall be deemed 69 
valid and enforceable. 70 

Section 9.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Resolution as if such 71 
recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 9. 72 

 73 
THIS RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury, 74 

Maryland held on __________ ____, 2021 and is to become effective immediately upon adoption. 75 
 76 
ATTEST: 77 
 78 
 79 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 80 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 81 
 82 
 83 
 84 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2021. 85 
 86 
 87 
 88 
_____________________________ 89 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 90 



   

                           
                        
 
 

 

Memo 

To: City Council 
From: Laura Soper 
Date: 9/15/2021 
Subject ADA Ramp Installation 

 

The Department of Business Development is working with the working with the Masonic Lodge and St. 
Peter’s on a solution that would allow us to construct an ADA ramp to our office. The ramp would span 
both the Masonic Lodge property (where the Visitor Center is located) and the St. Peter’s vestry building 
property (the old City Hall). The ADA entrance will be at the back of the building, leading up from the 
parking lot behind St. Peter’s and the Downtown Visitor Center. The contractor would do a small cut in 
the existing brick wall and construct a ramp that would lead to our office’s rear entrance.  

In advance of bringing this to Council, we shared the proposed agreement with both St. Peter’s and the 
Masonic Lodge, and they were both satisfied with the language proposed. 

We look forward to answering any questions you may have on this matter. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

RESOLUTION NO. 3128 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO ENTER INTO, ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, AN AGREEMENT 
WITH ST. PETERS EPISCOPAL CHURCH AND LODGE WICOMICO NO. 91 AF & AM FOR 
THE CITY OF SALISBURY’S CONSTRUCTION AND INSTALLATION OF A HANDICAP 
ACCESS RAMP AT THE REAR ENTRANCE OF THE DOWNTOWN SALISBURY VISITOR 
CENTER BUILDING AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 8 

9 
WHEREAS, St. Peters Episcopal Church (the “Church”) is the fee simple owner of all that certain real property 10 

situate in the City of Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland, identified as Map 0107, Grid 0014, Parcel 1032, consisting 11 
of 15,064 square feet of land, more or less, and having a premises address of 115 St. Peters Street, Salisbury, Maryland 12 
21801 (the “Church Property”); and 13 

WHEREAS, Lodge Wicomico No. 91 AF & AM (the “Masonic Lodge”) is the owner of all that certain real 14 
property situate in the City of Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland, identified as Map 0107, Grid 0014, Parcel 1038, 15 
consisting of 8,136 square feet of land, more or less, and having a premises address of 110 North Division Street, 16 
Salisbury, Maryland 21801 (the “Masonic Lodge Property”); and 17 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Lease Agreement, dated June 9, 2020 (the “Lease”), by and between the 18 
Masonic Lodge, as “Lessor” thereunder, and the City of Salisbury (the “City”), as “Lessee” thereunder, the City leases 19 
approximately 2,320 square feet of floor space within the building located at the Masonic Lodge Property (the “Masons 20 
Building”) for the City’s use in connection with the operations of the Department of Business Development and the 21 
Downtown Salisbury Visitor Center (the space within the Masons Building leased by the City as aforesaid is hereinafter 22 
referred to as the “Downtown Visitor Center”); and 23 

WHEREAS, the City desires to (i) construct and install a concrete handicap access ramp to the rear entrance of 24 
Downtown Visitor Center (the “ADA Ramp”) and (ii) in connection with the ADA Ramp to be constructed by the City 25 
hereunder, the City desires to obtain the exclusive use of five (5) parking spots located on the rear side of the building 26 
at the Church Property (collectively the “Church Parking Spots”); and 27 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions governing the City’s use of the Masonic Lodge Property and the Church 28 
Property, respectively, for the City’s construction and installation of the ADA Ramp, as well as the City’s exclusive 29 
rights to the use of the five (5) Church Parking Spots as aforesaid, are set forth in that certain Agreement for Construction 30 
& Maintenance of ADA Ramp (the “Agreement”), by and between the City, the Church and the Masonic Lodge attached 31 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 1; and 32 

WHEREAS, any and all documents, easements, plats and/or plans prepared for or in connection with the 33 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby shall be reviewed and approved by the City Solicitor prior to the 34 
Mayor’s execution thereof on behalf of the City. 35 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, 36 
MARYLAND, as follows: 37 

Section 1. Mayor Jacob R. Day is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf of the City of Salisbury, that certain 38 
Agreement for Construction & Maintenance of ADA Ramp, by and between the City of Salisbury, St. Peters Episcopal 39 
Church and Lodge Wicomico No. 91 AF & AM, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 1. 40 

Section 2. Any and all documents, easements, plats and/or plans (collectively the “Related Documents”) 41 
prepared for, or in connection with, the Agreement shall be reviewed and approved by the City Solicitor prior to the 42 
Mayor’s execution thereof on behalf of the City of Salisbury, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to take, on behalf of 43 
the City of Salisbury, all such action(s), including the negotiation, execution and/or delivery of all Related Documents, 44 
if any, as may be necessary to complete the transactions contemplated by the terms of the Agreement. 45 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 46 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE PAGE THAT FOLLOWS] 47 
48 



 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and read and passed at the Regular Meeting of the Council of 49 
the City of Salisbury held on this ____day of ______________, 2021 and is to become effective immediately upon 50 
adoption. 51 
 52 
ATTEST: 53 
 54 
 55 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 56 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 57 
 58 
 59 
 60 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2021. 61 
 62 
 63 
 64 
_____________________________ 65 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 66 
 67 



1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE OF ADA RAMP 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE OF ADA 
RAMP, is made this ___ day of _______________________, 2021, by and between The City of 
Salisbury (the “City”), St. Peters Episcopal Church (the “Church”) and Lodge Wicomico No. 
91 AF & AM (the “Masonic Lodge”) (the City, the Church and the Masonic Lodge are hereinafter 
referred to collectively as the “Parties”). WITNESSETH: 
 

RECITALS 
WHEREAS, the Church is the owner of all that certain real property situate in the City of 

Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland, identified as Map 0107, Grid 0014, Parcel 1032, 
consisting of 15,064 square feet of land, more or less, and having a premises address of 115 St. 
Peters Street, Salisbury, Maryland 21801 (said real property is hereinafter referred to as “Parcel 
1032”); 

WHEREAS, the Masonic Lodge is the owner of all that certain real property situate in the 
City of Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland, identified as Map 0107, Grid 0014, Parcel 1038, 
consisting of 8,136 square feet of land, more or less, and having a premises address of 110 North 
Division Street, Salisbury, Maryland 21801 (said real property is hereinafter referred to as “Parcel 
1038”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Lease Agreement, dated June 9, 2020 (the “Lease”), 
by and between the Masonic Lodge, as “Lessor” thereunder, and the City, as “Lessee” thereunder, 
the City leases approximately 2,320 square feet of floor space within the building located at Parcel 
1038 (the “Building”) for use in connection with the City’s operations of its Department of 
Business Development and the Downtown Salisbury Visitor Center (the space leased by the City 
from the Masonic Lodge in accordance with Lease is hereinafter referred to as the “Visitor 
Center”);  

WHEREAS, in connection with its use and operation of the Visitor Center, the City desires 
to construct and install a concrete handicap access ramp to the rear entrance of Visitor Center (the 
“ADA Ramp”); 

WHEREAS, as planned by the City, the ADA Ramp will constructed and installed 
adjacent to certain parking spots located within the rear portion of Parcel 1032 and extending to 
the rear entrance of the Visitor Center, as more particularly shown on Exhibit A attached hereto 
and incorporated herein; 

WHEREAS, for purposes of the City’s construction and installation of the ADA Ramp to 
the rear entrance of the Visitor Center as aforesaid, the City requires access to the rear portion of 
Parcel 1032 during the period of its construction of the ADA Ramp and from time to time thereafter 
to perform its obligations hereunder, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Lease, the City’s construction and installation of 
the ADA Ramp to the rear entrance of the Visitor Center requires the consent of the Masonic 
Lodge;  
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Church 
hereby acknowledges and agrees to the City’s use of such portions of Parcel 1032 for the 



2 

construction, installation and maintenance of the ADA Ramp to the rear entrance of the Visitor 
Center as more particularly shown on Exhibit A; and, 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Masonic 
Lodge hereby acknowledges and agrees to the City’s construction and installation of the ADA 
Ramp upon the Building and at the rear entrance of the Visitor Center as more particularly shown 
on Exhibit A;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements and 
obligations of the Parties contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which is hereby expressly acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties, for 
themselves and their respective successors and assigns, do hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

1. The Church’s Agreement for the City’s Use of Parcel 1032 to Construct and
Install the ADA Ramp.  

(a) By its execution of this Agreement the Church expressly acknowledges and
agrees to the City’s use of such portions of Parcel 1032 for the City’s construction, installation and 
maintenance of the ADA Ramp to the rear entrance of the Visitor Center, as more particularly 
depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

(b) The City and the Church expressly acknowledge and agree as follows:
(i) The Church currently maintains five (5) parking spots behind the

building located at Parcel 1032 commonly known as the “Former City Hall Building” (said five 
(5) parking spots are hereinafter referred to as the “St. Peter’s Parking Spots”;

(ii) The City currently maintains a municipal parking area on Church
Street which is directly adjacent to the sanctuary owned and operated Church (the “Church 
Street Municipal Parking Area”);  

(iii) For so long as the City leases or otherwise uses the space defined 
herein as the Visitor Center, the Church hereby grants unto the City the exclusive right and access 
to use the St. Peter’s Parking Spots. 

(iv) For so long as the City leases or otherwise uses the space defined 
herein as the Visitor Center, the City shall convey, free of charge, to the Church five (5) permits 
authorizing the parking of vehicles within the Church Street Municipal Parking Area, which said 
five (5) permits may be used by the Church in its sole discretion subject to all applicable state and 
local laws. 

(c) Upon completing the construction of the ADA Ramp, the City and Church 
shall enter into an Easement Agreement, as may be necessary, setting forth the City’s right to 
access and enter upon such portions of Parcel 1032 for and in connection with the City’s 
installation and maintenance of the ADA Ramp and the City’s use of St. Peter’s Parking Spots as 
provided herein. The aforesaid Easement Agreement (if any), shall be subject to the mutual 
agreement of the City and the Church and shall be prepared at the sole cost and expense of the 
City (excluding any attorney’s fees or other professional contractor fees incurred by the Church in 
the negotiation thereof); upon the execution of the aforesaid Easement Agreement (if any) by the 
City and the Church, such Easement Agreement shall be recorded with the Land Records of 
Wicomico County, Maryland, at the sole cost and expense of the City.  



3 
 

 2. The Masonic Lodge’s Agreement for the City’s Use of Parcel 1038 to 
Construct and Install the ADA Ramp.   

(a) By its execution of this Agreement the Masonic Lodge expressly 
acknowledges and agrees to the City’s construction and installation of the ADA Ramp at the rear 
entrance of the Visitor Center, as more particularly depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein, which said construction shall include, but not be limited to, saw-cutting a 
section of the 14” exterior brick wall of the Building which borders Parcel 1032.  

(b) The City and the Masonic Lodge expressly acknowledge and agree that the 
Masonic Lodge’s execution of this Agreement shall constitute the Masonic Lodge’s consent to the 
City’s construction and installation of the ADA Ramp at the rear entrance of the Visitor Center as 
required by the terms of the Lease by and between the City and the Masonic Lodge.  

(c) The City’s rights and obligations with respect to construction, installation 
and maintenance of the ADA Ramp shall be governed by the terms and conditions of the Lease 
and any amendments thereto. 
 3. Term of Agreement.   The “Term” of this Agreement shall commence upon the 
execution hereof by all of the Parties and shall expire, unless otherwise agreed to in a writing 
executed by the Parties hereto, upon (i) the expiration or termination of the Lease, and any 
extensions thereof or amendments thereof, by and between the City and the Masonic Lodge or (ii) 
at such time as the City shall cease to use the Visitor Center space for the operation(s) of any 
municipal government function(s), whichever shall occur later. 
 4. Construction of the ADA Ramp.  In connection with the construction and 
installation of the ADA Ramp as contemplated herein, the City shall: 
  (a) Obtain any and all permits necessary for the construction of the ADA Ramp; 
  (b) Construct and, during the Term of this Agreement, maintain the ADA Ramp 
in compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and/or ordinances of each governmental agency 
having jurisdiction over the construction and/or use of the ADA Ramp. 
 5. Indemnification by the City. During the term of this Agreement, the City hereby 
expressly agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the Church and the Masonic Lodge, and each of 
their representatives, agents, successors and assigns, and harmless from and against any and all 
claims by any person, firm or entity for labor, services, materials or supplies provided in 
connection with the construction, installation and/or maintenance of ADA Ramp which arise from 
the sole negligence of the City or any of its officials, employees, representatives, successors and/or 
assigns.  

 6. Miscellaneous. 
  (a) Authority.  Each party represents and warrants to the other party that it: (i) 
has the full right, power and authority to execute this Agreement; (ii) the execution and delivery 
of this Agreement and the performance of its obligations hereunder are not prohibited by or in 
breach of, and the provisions hereof do not conflict with, any other agreement, mortgage, contract 
or other instrument or document to which it is a party or by which it is otherwise bound; and, (iii) 
there are no legal requirements imposed upon it which prohibit or limit the execution and delivery 
of this Agreement and the performance of its obligations hereunder. 



4 
 

  (b) Waiver-Amendments.  Any of the terms or conditions contained in this 
Agreement may be waived but only in writing by the party which is entitled to the benefit thereof, 
and this Agreement may be amended or modified in whole or in part only by an agreement in 
writing executed by all of the Parties. Each and every right, remedy and power granted to a party 
under this Agreement or allowed by law shall be cumulative and not exclusive of any other. 
  (c) Severability.  If any term of this Agreement or any application thereof is 
held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Any provision of this Agreement held invalid or 
unenforceable only in part or degree shall remain in full force and effect to the extent not held 
invalid or unenforceable. 
  (d) Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including all exhibits attached hereto, 
constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties with respect to the matters set 
forth herein, and all prior negotiations, writings and understandings relating to the subject matter 
of this Agreement are merged herein and are superseded and canceled by this Agreement. 
  (e) Construction.  This Agreement and all of the terms and conditions set forth 
herein shall not be construed or enforced in favor of or against any party hereto by reason of the 
fact that party or that party’s agent or attorney drafted all or any part of this Agreement. Section 
headings are for convenience of reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect any of the 
provisions of this Agreement. As used herein, any reference to the masculine, feminine or neuter 
gender shall include all genders, the plural shall include the singular, and the singular shall include 
the plural 
  (f) Notices. All notices and other communication given by a party to the other 
in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered to the 
addressee thereof: (i) when delivered in person on a business day at the address set forth below; 
or, (ii) on the third (3rd) business day after being deposited in any main or branch United States 
post office, for delivery by properly addressed, postage prepaid certified or registered mail, return 
receipt requested, at the address set forth below; or, (iii) when delivered by a nationally-recognized 
delivery service company at the address set forth below, with written proof of delivery. 

All notices and other communications to the City shall be addressed to, and 
delivered at, the following address: 

   The City of Salisbury 
   Department of Business Development 
   Attn: Laura Soper, Director 
   110 N. Division Street 
   Salisbury, Maryland 21801 

 
All notices and other communications to the Church shall be addressed to, 

and delivered at, the following address: 
   St. Peter’s Church 
   115 Church Street 
   Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
 



5 
 

All notices and other communications to the Masonic Lodge shall be 
addressed to, and delivered at, the following address: 

   Lodge Wicomico No. 91 AF & AM 
   110 N. Division Street 
   Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
 
Either party may change its address by providing notice to the other party as set forth in this Section 
6(f). 
  (g) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, without regard to its conflict of laws principles. 
  (h) Recitals.  The Recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated by reference 
herein, and made a part hereof, as if fully set forth in this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE PAGE THAT FOLLOWS] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set their hands and seals and 
acknowledged this Agreement for Construction and Maintenance of ADA Ramp as of the day and 
year first above written.  
 
WITNESS/ATTEST:   THE “CITY”:     

City of Salisbury, Maryland 
 
 
_______________________   By:________________________________(SEAL) 
           Jacob R. Day, Mayor 
 
 
      THE “CHURCH”: 
      St. Peter’s Episcopal Church 
 
 
_______________________   By:________________________________(SEAL) 
          Rev. David Michaud, Authorized Representative 
 
 

THE “MASONIC LODGE”: 
      Lodge Wicomico No. 91 AF & AM 
 
 
_______________________   By:________________________________(SEAL) 
          James Royal, Authorized Representative 
 



 

  1 

Memorandum 

To: Amanda Pollack, Director of Infrastructure & Development 

From: William T. Holland 

Date: 8/5/2021 

Re: East Lincoln Avenue – M & L Rentals, LLP Annexation  

Attached is the completed package for the referenced annexation.  Please have this 
scheduled for the City Council work session for Monday, August 16, 2021.  Let me know if 
you have any questions. 

 



1 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 

RESOLUTION NO. 3105

A RESOLUTION of the Council of the City of Salisbury proposing the 
annexation to the City of Salisbury of certain area of land contiguous to 
and binding upon the Corporate Limit of the City of Salisbury to be known 
as “East Lincoln Avenue – M & L Rentals, LLP Annexation” beginning 
for the same point at a corner of the existing Corporate Limits Line of the 
City of Salisbury, MD, being near the northerly right of way line of East 
Lincoln Avenue and also being near the southwesterly corner of the land 
of M & L Rentals, LLP, being known as Lot A containing 0.245 acres, 
more or less. 11 

12 
RECITALS 13 

WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury has received a Petition for Annexation, dated May 7, 2019, 14 
signed by at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the persons who are resident registered voters and of the 15 
persons who are owners of at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the assessed valuation of the real property 16 
in the area sought to be annexed binding upon the Corporate Limit of the City of Salisbury to be known as 17 
“East Lincoln Avenue – M & L Rentals, LLP Annexation” beginning for the same point on the westerly 18 
side of South Division Street.  Said point beginning for the same point at a corner of the existing Corporate 19 
Limits Line of the City of Salisbury, MD being near the northerly right of way line of East Lincoln Avenue 20 
continuing around the perimeter of the affected property to the point of beginning, being all that real 21 
property identified as Map 0048, Parcel 0242 and further being the same real property more particularly 22 
described in Exhibit A-1 attached hereto and incorporated herein (the aforesaid real property is hereinafter 23 
referred to as the “Annexed Property”); and 24 

WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury has caused to be made a certification of the signatures on the 25 
said petition for annexation and the City of Salisbury has verified that the persons signing the petition 26 
represent at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the persons who are eligible voters and property owners 27 
owning twenty-five percent (25%) of the assessed valuation of real property in the area to be annexed, all 28 
as of March 13, 2020, as set forth in the certification by Leslie C. Sherrill, Surveyor, of the City of Salisbury, 29 
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein; and 30 

WHEREAS, it appears that the aforesaid Petition for Annexation, dated May 7, 2019, meets all 31 
the requirements of applicable state and local law; and 32 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MD Code, Local Government, § 4-406, a public hearing on this 33 
Resolution, providing for the City of Salisbury’s annexation of the Annexed Property as set forth herein, 34 
shall be and hereby is scheduled for September 27, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 35 

36 
37 
38 



2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 39 
SALISBURY as follows: 40 

Section 1.  It is proposed and recommended that that the municipal boundaries of the City of 41 
Salisbury be changed so as to annex to and include within the said municipal boundaries of the City of 42 
Salisbury all that certain real property more particularly described in Exhibit A-1 attached hereto and 43 
incorporated herein (the real property to be annexed by the City of Salisbury as contemplated by this 44 
Resolution is hereinafter referred to as the “Annexed Property”). 45 

Section 2.  The annexation of the Annexed Property be and hereby is approved by the Council of 46 
the City of Salisbury subject to all terms, conditions and agreements contained in Exhibits A, B and C 47 
each of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as if all such terms, conditions and agreements 48 
contained in such Exhibits were specifically set forth at length in this Resolution. 49 

Section 3.  The Zoning Map of the City of Salisbury shall be amended to include the Annexed 50 
Property within that certain Zoning District of the City of Salisbury identified as “R-8 Residential”, which 51 
said real property newly annexed into Corporate Limits of the City of Salisbury, as contemplated by this 52 
Resolution, is presently zoned “R-8 Residential” in accordance with the existing zoning laws of Wicomico 53 
County, Maryland. 54 

Section 4.  Pursuant to MD Code, Local Government, § 4-406, the Council of the City of Salisbury 55 
shall hold a public hearing on this Resolution on September 27, 2021 at 6:00p.m. in the Council 56 
Chambers at the City-County Office Building, and the City Administrator shall cause a public notice of 57 
time and place of the said public hearing to be published not fewer than two (2) times at not less than weekly 58 
intervals, in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salisbury, which said public 59 
notice shall specify a time and place at which the Council of the City of Salisbury will the hold the aforesaid 60 
public hearing, the date of which shall be no sooner than fifteen (15) days after the final required date of 61 
publication as specified hereinabove. 62 

AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY 63 
AS FOLLOWS: 64 

Section 5.  It is the intention of the Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision this 65 
Resolution shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 66 

Section 6.  It is further the intention of the Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, 67 
paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or 68 
otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to 69 
the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this 70 
Resolution shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 71 

72 



3 

Section 7. The Recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of this Resolution 73 
as if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 7. 74 

Section 8.  This Resolution and the annexation of the Annexed Property as contemplated herein, 75 
shall take effect upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days following its final passage, subject, however, to 76 
the right of referendum with respect to this Resolution as set forth in MD Code, Local Government, § 4-77 
401, et seq. 78 

 THIS RESOLUTION was introduced, read and passed at the regular meeting of the Council of the 79 
City of Salisbury held on the 23rd day of August, 2021, having been duly published as required by law 80 
in the meantime a public hearing was held on the 27th day of September, 2021 at 6:00 p.m., and was 81 
finally passed by the Council at its regular meeting held on the 27th day of 82 
September, 2021. 83 

84 

___________________________________ _____________________________________ 85 
Kimberly R. Nichols,          John R. Heath, 86 
City Clerk            Council President 87 

88 
APPROVED BY ME this _____ day of__________________, 2021. 89 

90 
91 

____________________________ 92 
Jacob R. Day, 93 
Mayor 94 









































1 

RESOLUTION NO. 3106 1 
2 

A RESOLUTION of the Council of the City of Salisbury proposing the 3 
annexation to the City of Salisbury of certain area of land contiguous to 4 
and binding upon the Corporate Limit of the City of Salisbury to be known 5 
as “East Lincoln Avenue – M & L Rentals, LLP Annexation” beginning 6 
for the same point at a corner of the existing Corporate Limits Line of the 7 
City of Salisbury, MD, being near the northerly right of way line of East 8 
Lincoln Avenue and also being near the southwesterly corner of the land 9 
of M & L Rentals, LLP, being known as Lot A containing 0.245 acres, 10 
more or less. 11 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Petition for Annexation, dated May 7, 2019, the City of 12 

Salisbury proposes the annexation of that certain lot and parcel of land contiguous to and binding upon 13 

the Corporate Limit of the City of Salisbury, beginning for the same point being near the northerly right of 14 

way line of East Lincoln Avenue and also being near the southwesterly corner of the lands of M & L 15 

Rentals, LLP, being all that real property identified as Map 0048, Parcel 0242 and further being the same 16 

real property more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the 17 

“Annexed Property”); and      18 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MD Code, Local Government, § 4-415, the City of Salisbury is required 19 

to adopt an Annexation Plan for the proposed annexation of the Annexed Property; and, 20 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MD Code, Local Government, § 4-406, a public hearing on this 21 

22 Resolution, providing for the Council of the City of Salisbury’s approval of the Annexation Plan (as 

23  defined herein below) for the City of Salisbury’s annexation of the Annexed Property as set forth herein, 

24  shall be and hereby is scheduled for September 27, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

25    NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SALISBURY as follows: 26 

Section 1.  The “Annexation Plan for the M & L Rentals LLP – 535 Lincoln Avenue Annexation 27 

to the City of Salisbury”, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B (the “Annexation Plan”), 28 

be and hereby is adopted for the City of Salisbury’s annexation of the Annexed Property as contemplated 29 

by this Resolution. 30 

 Section 2.  Pursuant to MD Code, Local Government, § 4-406, the Council of the City of Salisbury 31 

shall hold a public hearing on this Resolution on September 27, 2021 at 6:00p.m. in the Council 32 

Chambers at the City-County Office Building, and the City Administrator shall cause a public notice of 33 

time and place of the said public hearing to be published not fewer than two (2) times at not less than weekly 34 

intervals, in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salisbury, which said public 35 

notice shall specify a time and place at which the Council of the City of Salisbury will the hold the aforesaid 36 



2 

public hearing, the date of which shall be no sooner than fifteen (15) days after the final required date of 37 

publication as specified hereinabove. AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF 38 

THE CITY OF SALISBURY AS FOLLOWS: 39 

Section 3.  It is the intention of the Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision this 40 

Resolution shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 41 

Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, 42 

paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or 43 

otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to 44 

the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this 45 

Resolution shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 46 

Section 5. The Recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of this Resolution 47 

as if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 7. 48 

Section 6.  This Resolution and the annexation of the Annexed Property as contemplated herein, 49 

shall take effect upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days following its final passage, subject, however, to 50 

the right of referendum with respect to this Resolution as set forth in MD Code, Local Government, § 4-51 

401, et seq. 52 

 THIS RESOLUTION was introduced and read and passed at the regular meeting of the 53 

Council of the City of Salisbury held on the 23rd day of August 2021, having been duly 54 

published as required by law in the meantime a public hearing was held on September 27, 2021 55 

at 6:00 p.m., and was finally passed by the Council of the City of Salisbury at its regular meeting held on 56 

September 27, 2021. 57 

58 

59 

___________________________________ ___________________________________ 60 
Kimberly R. Nichols,       John R. Heath, 61 
City Clerk            Council President 62 

63 

64 

65 

APPROVED BY ME this _____ day of __________________, 2021. 66 

67 

68 

____________________________ 69 
Jacob R. Day, 70 
Mayor 71 





















ORDINANCE NO. 2681 1 
 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY APPROVING AN AMENDMENT OF THE 3 
CITY’S GRANT FUND BUDGET TO REALLOCATE BUDGETED MATCHING FUNDS FROM 4 
OTHER GRANT PROJECTS TO THE ZOO SPECIAL EVENTS PAVILION, PHASE 2 PROJECT. 5 

 6 
WHEREAS, the FY22 Budget Ordinance No. 2660, Schedule C included a Program Open Space 7 

(POS) project titled ‘Resurfacing of Existing Tennis Courts’ in the amount of $99,000 with a budgeted 8 
matching amount of $11,000; and 9 

 10 
WHEREAS, the ‘Resurfacing of Existing Tennis Courts’ project was deemed ineligible for POS 11 

funding in FY22 by the Maryland Department of Natural Resources (DNR), as those tennis courts will not 12 
be eligible to receive additional POS funding until FY23; and 13 

 14 
WHEREAS, the Wicomico County Recreation, Parks & Tourism Department has agreed to allow 15 

the City to redirect the POS funds that were approved for the ‘Resurfacing of Existing Tennis Courts’ project 16 
to an alternate project – the ‘Zoo Special Events Pavilion, Phase 2’ project; and 17 
 18 

WHEREAS, the FY22 Budget Ordinance No. 2660, Schedule C included a POS project titled ‘New 19 
Tennis Complex’ in the amount of $540,000 with a budgeted matching amount of $60,000; and 20 
 21 

WHEREAS, the ‘New Tennis Complex’ project was not approved for POS funding by the 22 
Wicomico County Recreation, Parks & Tourism Department; and 23 

 24 
WHEREAS, the FY22 Budget Ordinance No. 2660, Schedule C included a POS project titled  ‘Zoo 25 

Special Events Pavilion, Phase 2’ in the amount of $172,357 with a budgeted matching amount of $0; and 26 
 27 

WHEREAS, the Zoo Special Events Pavilion is a multi-phase project, and the Department of Field 28 
Operations is seeking to utilize those grant match funds that are no longer required for other POS projects for 29 
the Zoo Special Events Pavilion project.  30 

 31 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 32 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 33 

 34 
1. Decrease amount shown for ‘Resurfacing of Existing Tennis Courts’ project in Grant Match 35 

budget (91001-599120) by $11,000 36 
2. Decrease amount shown for ‘New Tennis Complex’ project  in Grant Match budget (91001-37 

599120) by $60,000 38 
3. Increase amount shown for ‘Zoo Special Events Pavilion, Phase 2’ project  in Grant Match 39 

budget (91001-599120) by $71,000 40 
 41 
THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury held on 42 
this 13th day of  September 2021, and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance having been 43 
published as required by law, was finally passed by the Council on the ____ day of ______, 2021. 44 
 45 
 46 
ATTEST: 47 
 48 
 49 
________________________________       __________________________________ 50 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk        John R. Heath, City Council President 51 
 52 



 53 
 54 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2021. 55 
 56 
 57 
 58 
_____________________________ 59 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 60 
 61 



ORDINANCE NO. 2682 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY APPROVING AN AMENDMENT OF 3 
THE CITY’S GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND BUDGET TO REALLOCATE FUNDING 4 
FOR THE ZOO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE SPACE PROJECT. 5 

 6 
WHEREAS, the FY2020 Budget Ordinance No. 2539 appropriated $100,000 for the Zoo 7 

Administrative Project; and   8 
 9 
WHEREAS, the Infrastructure and Development Department estimates an additional $64,000 is 10 

required for the project; and 11 
 12 
WHEREAS, Interest on bond proceeds in the same bond pool are available on to cover the 13 

additional funds required; and   14 
 15 
WHEREAS, the Department of Field Operations is seeking to move unused interest to the Zoo 16 

Administrative Office Space project.  17 
 18 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, 19 
MARYLAND THAT THE City’s Capital Projects Fund Budget be and hereby is amended as follows: 20 
 21 
1. Increase the Interest Revenue (98019-456110-43022) budget by $64,000.00 22 
2. Increase the Zoo Admin Office Space (98119-513026-43022) budget by $64,000.00 23 
 24 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury 25 
held on this 13th day of September 2021, and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance having 26 
been published as required by law, was finally passed by the Council on the ____ day of ______, 2021. 27 
 28 
 29 
ATTEST: 30 
 31 
___________________________________  __________________________________ 32 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk  John R. Heath, President 33 

Salisbury City Council 34 
 35 
 36 
APPROVED BY ME THIS ____ day of _______, 2021. 37 
 38 
________________________________________ 39 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 40 



 
 

 

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 
From:  Amanda H. Pollack, P.E., Director of Infrastructure & Development 
Date: September 3, 2021 
Re: Budget Amendment – CFES Endowment Grant for City Park Bridge and Bandstand Repairs 
             
 
The Department of Infrastructure & Development is requesting consideration for a budget amendment 
associated with the City Park Bridge and Bandstand.  The Community Foundation of the Eastern Shore 
administers a Salisbury Park Bandstand & Bridge Designated Endowment Fund.  Both structures are in 
need of annual maintenance work.  The work proposed for the Bandstand includes painting the roof, 
removing and replacing deteriorated handrail, and painting the 2nd floor ceiling.  The work proposed for 
the white historic pedestrian Bridge includes painting the bridge, removing and replacing deteriorated 
railing members, replacing sections of grating in disrepair and filling/sanding carvings in the railing.  Both 
projects will require approval from the Maryland Historic Trust.  Approval will be obtained before the 
projects are issued for bid. 
 
Per the attached letter from David Plotts at the Community Foundation dated September 2, 2021, the 
endowment account has $40,084.21 available for repairs.  The budget amendment seeks to use $40,000 
from the endowment account and $5,000 from surplus to cover contingency. 
 
Unless you or the Mayor have further questions, please forward a copy of this memo and the ordinances 
to the City Council. 
 



 

Community Foundation of the Eastern Shore, Inc. 
1324 Belmont Ave Suite 401  |  Salisbury, MD 21804  |  CFES.org  |  410-742-9911 

Officers 

Michael P. Truitt 

Chairman 
 

James P. Jones 

Vice Chairman 
 

Dr. Carolyn S. Johnston 

Secretary 
 

W. Todd Hershey 

Treasurer 
 

Directors 

Edward Barber 

Allen C. Brown, Sr. 

Velda E. Henry 

Andy Kim 

M. Dean Lewis 

Ginnie Malone 

Dwight W. Marshall, Jr. 

Kathleen G. McLain 

Daniel M. O’Connell  

Janice M. Perdue 

Ernest R. Satchell 

Gregory D. Tawes 

Lauren C. Taylor 

James R. Thomas, Jr. 

David A. Vorhis 

Dr. Annette E. Wallace 

Dr. George I. Whitehead, III 

Gayle H. Widdowson 

Stephanie T. Willey 

Dr. Julius D. Zant 

 

President 

Erica N. Joseph 

 

September 2, 2021 

 

Ms. Deborah J. Stam 

Grants Manager 

Finance Department / HCDD 

City of Salisbury 

207 West Main Street, Suite 102 

Salisbury, Maryland   21801 

 

RE:  CFES Endowment Fund – City Park Bandstand & Bridge 

 

Ms. Stam, 

 

It is my understanding that the City of Salisbury would like to make a withdrawal 

from the endowment fund that has been established at the Community Foundation 

of the Eastern Shore (CFES) for the Salisbury City Park Bandstand and Bridge for 

some repairs that need to be made to those fixtures. 

 

The CFES endowment fund for the City Park Bandstand and Bridge currently has 

an available balance of $40,084.21.  CFES will be happy to reimburse the City for 

repair expenditures not to exceed that amount upon receipt of copies of the 

invoices for those repairs. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
David Plotts 

Controller 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2683 1 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY APPROVING AN 2 
AMENDMENT OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY’S FY22 GENERAL FUND 3 
BUDGET AND THE GRANT FUND BUDGET TO ALLOCATE FUNDING FROM 4 
THE COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF THE EASTERN SHORE AND GENERAL 5 
FUND GRANT MATCH FOR MAINTENANCE OF THE BANDSTAND AND 6 
BRIDGE IN THE CITY PARK.  7 

 8 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury (the “City”) has the responsibility for maintenance of the Bandstand 9 

and the historic pedestrian Bridge in the City Park; and 10 
 11 
WHEREAS, the Community Foundation of the Eastern Shore (“CFES”) administers a Salisbury Park 12 

Bandstand & Bridge Designated Endowment Fund; and 13 
 14 
WHEREAS, routine maintenance is currently needed on both the Bandstand and the Bridge, consisting 15 

of washing, repairing and painting the structures; and 16 
 17 

WHEREAS, the CFES Salisbury Park Bandstand & Bridge Designated Endowment Fund has income 18 
available for the City to utilize for this required maintenance; and 19 

 20 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to utilize some of the CFES endowment funds to complete the required 21 

maintenance; and 22 
 23 
WHEREAS, § 7-29 of the Salisbury City Charter prohibits the City from entering into a contract that 24 

requires an expenditure not appropriated or authorized by the Council of the City of Salisbury; and 25 
WHEREAS, appropriations necessary to execute the purpose of this grant must be made upon the 26 

recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 27 
 28 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 29 

OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows:  30 
 31 

 Section 1.  Mayor Jacob R. Day is hereby authorized to establish a grant account for the Community 32 
Foundation of the Eastern Shore (“CFES”), on behalf of the City of Salisbury, for the City’s acceptance of 33 
Salisbury Park Bandstand & Bridge Designated Endowment Fund monies in the amount of $40,000. 34 
 35 

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 36 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 37 

 38 
Section 2.  39 
a) The City of Salisbury’s Grant Fund Budget be and hereby is amended as follows: 40 

1) Increase CFES Revenue Account No. 10500–426100–XXXXX by $40,000. 41 
2) Increase Grant Match – General Fund Revenue Account 42 

No. 10500–499000–XXXXX by $5,000. 43 
3) Increase Park Bandstand & Bridge Maintenance – Construction Expense Account 44 

No. 10500–513026–XXXXX by $45,000. 45 

b) The City of Salisbury’s FY22 General Fund Budget be and is hereby amended as follows: 46 
1) Increase Current Year Surplus Account No. 01000-469810 by $5,000. 47 
2) Increase Grant Match – Parks Account No. 91001-599155 by $5,000. 48 

 49 



BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 50 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 51 

Section 3.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision of this 52 
Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 53 

Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, 54 
paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or 55 
otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to the 56 
section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this Ordinance shall 57 
remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 58 

Section 5.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as if such 59 
recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 5. 60 

Section 6.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 61 
 62 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury 63 
held on the _______ day of ______________, 2021 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance 64 
having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council of the City of 65 
Salisbury on the _______ day of ________________, 2021. 66 
 67 
ATTEST: 68 
 69 
 70 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 71 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 72 
 73 
 74 
 75 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2021. 76 
 77 
 78 
 79 
_____________________________ 80 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 81 
 82 



 

 

                                                                   
 

To:  Julia Glanz, City Administrator & Andy Kitzrow, Deputy City Administrator 
From:  Ronald Strickler Jr., Director of HCDD 
Date:  August 30, 2021  
Re:  Meadow Cultivation Code Amendment 

 

At the direction of City Administrator Julia Glanz, the Housing and Community Development 
Department explored the possibility of adding Meadow Cultivation to the City of Salisbury 
Code.  The Housing and Community Development team, along with Alyssa Hastings, 
Sustainability Specialist of the Department of Infrastructure and Development partnered to 
determine the best solution for the residents of Salisbury. On behalf of the Housing and 
Community Development Department and Department of Infrastructure and Development, we 
are requesting consideration of the proposed Meadow Cultivation Code Amendment which 
would allow for residents to register and cultivate meadows.  

Through research conducted by Sustainability Specialist Alyssa Hastings, we are able to 
provide the benefits of allowing meadows within the City of Salisbury.  Wildflower meadows 
are complex, interactive communities of plants that provide essential ecosystem services. 
Wildflower meadows are valuable habitat, providing pollen, nectar, and seed resources, nesting 
sites, and a protected environment for our native bee and butterfly species. Additionally, many 
birds thrive on the food and shelter that wildflower meadows provide. Meadows aid in the 
infiltration and filtration of stormwater, prevent erosion, and store carbon. Salisbury is proud to 
be a Bee City USA community, by allowing residents to create pocket pollinator meadows in 
their yards, the City of Salisbury is expanding habitat for the pollinators we all depend on. 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

 
September 15, 2021 
 
 
Jack Heath 
Council President, City of Salisbury  
125 North Division Street 
Salisbury, MD 21801 
 
Re: A letter in support of the Pollinator Meadow Ordinance 
 
Dear Council President Heath, 
 
The Lower Shore Land Trust (LSLT) is submitting this letter of support for the 
City’s update of Chapter 8.08 to allow the cultivation of pollinator meadows 
within the City of Salisbury. 
 
The City of Salisbury has taken many steps recently to support wildlife and 
wildlife habitat within its boundaries including the City’s certifications as both 
a Bee City and a Bird City. The approval of the changes to the Brush, Weed, 
and Obnoxious Growth ordinance would support these recent initiatives by 
allowing property owners within the City to cultivate and care for meadows 
that would provide critical urban habitat for pollinators and other wildlife and 
compliment the City’s own efforts on City-owned properties such as City Park. 
 
Proper management of these areas is critical to both the health of the meadows 
and the aesthetic appeal of the City. These meadows add beautiful color and 
texture to yards and can provide habitat for pollinators, birds, and other 
beneficial creatures year-round. Well managed meadows can also provide 
benefits for stormwater management as they can help increase infiltration rates 
and reduce runoff to the storm drains. 
 
LSLT has been working with municipal landowners for years through our 
Pollinator Certification Program (Brochure attached). This program provides 
landowners with information on best practices for a pollinator-friendly garden. 
The proposed changes in the City ordinance would allow landowners to adopt 
many of the suggested pollinator certification criteria that they may not 
currently be able to under current regulations. 
 
LSLT thanks the City for all of their efforts to increase well-managed wildlife 
habitat within its boundaries. 
 
    Sincerely 

     
 
    Kate Patton 
    Executive Director, LSLT

 

Board of Directors 

Chair – Hugh Cropper, IV 

Vice Chair – Judith Stribling 

Treasurer – Suzy Taylor 

Secretary – Pete Bozick 

Ben Alder 

Karl Binns, Jr. 

Anthony DiPaolo 

Mike Dryden 

David Harkins 

Meegan Kennedy 

Robin Tomaselli 

 

Lower Shore Land Trust            
100 River Street                 

Snow Hill, Maryland 21863              

443-234-5587 

www.lowershorelandtrust.org 

http://www.lowershorelandtrust.org/




Lower Shore Land Trust

Pollinator
Certification

Program

The Lower Shore Land Trust
Pollinator Certification Program

promotes best management
techniques to foster habitat for

pollinators and other wildlife
 

100 River Street, Snow Hill MD 21863
 

For additional resources, events &
workshops, contact:

info@lowershorelandtrust.org 

Lower Shore Land Trust

 

Your support for this program helps promote
our goal for protecting natural heritage on

the Lower Shore. 

Sign up today! 
 Together we will keep the Eastern

Shore pollinator friendly!

Pollinator Friendly Garden Interest Form

Contact Information 
Name________________________________
Address_____________________________
_____________________________________
Email________________________________
Phone_______________________________

Garden Description

__Urban        __Suburban      __Rural

__less than 1/4 acre        __1/4-1 acre
__1-5 acres       __5-10 acres        __10+ acres

How large is your garden space?

What type of residence?

__House     __Townhouse      __Apartment
__Condominium      __Farm (Home Site)

__Assisted Living    __School    __Business
__Community Garden

What is your geographic location?

What would you like to see more of in
your yard? 

__Birds    __ Butterflies     __Bees

Please complete & send form to: 
Lower Shore Land Trust

100 River Street, Snow Hill MD 21863
Or scan and email to:

info@lowershorelandtrust.org

Courtesy of Barbara Seabrook's Pollinator Garden

Thank you!

Visit www.lowershorelandtrust.org
Call us at 443-234-5587



Steps to certify your pollinator friendly garden

1. Review the certification criteria below (more information online), fill out the Pollinator
Friendly Garden Interest Form on the back side and email to

info@lowershorelandtrust.org, or mail to: LSLT, 100 River Street, Snow Hill, MD 21863.
2. Once we receive your interest form, we will send you an application and additional

resource materials for habitat enhancement activities. 
3. Fill out the application and send (with photos electronically) to LSLT for review.

4. Once approved, you'll receive your Pollinator Friendly sign and recognition from LSLT. 
5. Look out for pollinator information and announcements from LSLT! Help spread the

word about the benefits of pollinators to your friends and neighbors!
 

Criteria for Certification
Food sources (at least 3)

native plants
host plants
fruiting trees

feeder
diversity of scent,
color, size

Water Sources (at least 2)
pond, river,
stream
birdbath

hanging drip
bottle
butterfly
puddle area

Cover sources (at least 2)
natural shelter
constructed
shelter

3 canopy layers
basking/ nesting
site

Conservation Practices (at least 8)
compost
rain garden
reduced lawn
areas

xeriscape
native species
no fertilizer use

Environmental Benefits of
Pollinator Gardens

 Clean Air & Water
Prevents Erosion
Supports Biodiversity &
Ecological Restoration
Enhances Plant Propagation

These benefits are crucial to humankind
and are referred to as ecosystem

services; the processes in which the
environment produces resources.

LSLT Mission
Lower Shore Land Trust is

dedicated to preserving rural
lands, to promoting vibrant

towns, and to building a
healthier and more connected

Eastern Shore. 

Pollinator 
Project Vision

Our vision is to ensure a healthy
environment for pollinators on

the Eastern Shore by encouraging
stewardship of our natural

resources and promoting the
benefit of pollinators
throughout our rural

communities. 

To keep this program sustainable, we
ask for a $25 dollar donation upon

submitting your application. This helps
us  cover costs for printing, mailing,
signage, and other resources and

support to keep this program going!

Thanks to generous support from:

Check out our website for educational programs at www.lowershorelandtrust.org

find more suggestions on our website



 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2685 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY TO AMDEND CHAPTER 8.08 3 
BRUSH, WEEDS AND OBNOXIOUS GROWTH TO INCLUDED THE DEFINITION 4 
& REQUIREMENTS OF MEADOW CULTIVATION AND TO ALLOW FOR THE 5 
CULTIVATION OF MEADOWS IN THE CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 6 

 7 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury has determined there is a need for periodic review 8 

of the City of Salisbury Municipal Code; and  9 
 10 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury desire to amend Chapter 8.08.080 to permit the 11 

cultivation of meadows subject to the terms and conditions provided hereinbelow. 12 
 13 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 14 

SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 15 
 16 

Section 1. Chapter 8.08 of the Salisbury City Code, entitled “Rental of Residential Premises”, be and is 17 
hereby amended by adding the bolded and underlined language as follows:  18 

 19 
8.08.080 Meadow Cultivation 20 

 21 

A. Meadows are a planned, intentional, and maintained planting of grasses and wildflowers that are 22 
commonly found in meadow and prairie plant communities, so not to include noxious weeds. The 23 
cultivation of Meadows shall be exempt from stipulations in section 8.08.010 Cutting or removal 24 
of grass, weeds, brush and plant growth if meeting the following conditions: 25 

 26 
1.  Meadow is managed in a manner so not to become infested with weeds or to create a 27 

stagnant, foul-smelling condition; 28 
 29 

2.  Meadow is managed so not to contain noxious weed growth and must include at minimum, 30 
a majority of plants native to Maryland; 31 

 32 
B. Definition of Noxious Weeds: any annual, biennial, or perennial weed or plant that adversely 33 

effects and/or threatens agricultural production. Noxious weeds found in Maryland as defined by 34 
the Maryland Department of Agriculture include: 35 

 36 
1. Johnsongrass; 37 

 38 
2. Shattercane; 39 

 40 
3. Palmer Amaranth; 41 

 42 
4. Common Waterhemp; 43 

 44 
5. Canada Thistle; 45 

 46 
6. Musk Thistle; 47 



 

 
 

 48 
7. Plumeless Thistle; 49 

 50 
8. and Bull Thistle; 51 

 52 
C. Meadow is set back not less than ten (10) feet from front property line; 53 

 54 
D. Meadow is set back not less than five (5) feet from side and/or rear property line; 55 

 56 
E. No Meadow set back is required for side and/or rear property line if a fully opaque fence, at least 57 

five (5) feet in height, is installed between the Meadow and neighboring side and/or rear property; 58 
 59 

F. Meadow must be cut to a height no greater than eight (8) inches a minimum of one (1) time 60 
annually between September 15 and March 15;  61 

 62 
G. All property owners who desire to participate in cultivating a Meadow must first register with the 63 

Housing and Community Development Department.   64 
 65 
 66 

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, 67 
MARYLAND, as follows: 68 

Section 2.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision of this Ordinance 69 
shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 70 

Section 3.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, paragraph, 71 
subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable 72 
under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause 73 
or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed valid and 74 
enforceable. 75 

Section 4.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as if such recitals 76 
were specifically set forth at length in this Section 4. 77 

Section 5.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 78 
 79 
THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury held 80 

on the 10th day of May, 2021 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance having been published as 81 
required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council of the City of Salisbury on the _____ day of 82 
_____________, 2021. 83 
 84 
ATTEST: 85 
 86 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 87 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 88 
 89 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2021. 90 
 91 
 92 
________________________________________ 93 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 94 





ORDINANCE NO. 2686 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 3 
ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & 4 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF ACCEPTING ADDITIONAL 5 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT 6 
OF $17,796.00, AND TO APPROVE A BUDGET AMENDMENT TO THE GRANT FUND 7 
TO APPROPRIATE SUCH CDBG FUNDS FOR THE PROJECTS OUTLINED IN THE 8 
2021 CDBG ACTION PLAN. 9 
 10 

WHEREAS, the Maryland State Office of the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (“HUD”) 11 
has determined the City of Salisbury (“City”) qualifies as an entitlement community; and 12 
 13 

WHEREAS, the City is, therefore, entitled to receive Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) funds 14 
directly from HUD, upon HUD’s approval of the City’s annual Action Plan; and 15 

 16 
WHEREAS, the amount of CDBG funding awarded by HUD to the City for PY2021 was higher than the amount 17 

anticipated by the City, as set forth in the FY2022 Schedule C Form (the “FY2022 Schedule C”) that was accepted 18 
through the City’s FY2022 budget process; and 19 

WHEREAS, the FY2022 Schedule C identifies anticipated PY2021 CDBG funding in the amount of 20 
$388,000.00, however, for PY2021, HUD awarded the City CDBG funding in the amount of $405,796.00, resulting in 21 
an award that is $17,796.00 more than the anticipated amount of CDBG funding set forth in the FY2022 Schedule C; 22 
and 23 

WHEREAS, § 7-29 of the Salisbury City Charter prohibits the City from entering into a contract that requires 24 
an expenditure not appropriated or authorized by the Council of the City of Salisbury; and 25 

WHEREAS, the appropriations necessary to execute the purpose of the additional $17,796.00 of CDBG funds 26 
awarded to the City by HUD for PY2021, as provided hereinabove, must be made upon the recommendation of the 27 
Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 28 

 29 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 30 

SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows:  31 
 32 

 Section 1.  Mayor Jacob R. Day is hereby authorized to enter into a grant agreement with the U.S. Department 33 
of Housing & Urban Development (“HUD”), on behalf of the City of Salisbury (the “City”), for the City’s acceptance 34 
of Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) funds in the amount of $17,796.00. 35 
 36 

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, 37 
MARYLAND, as follows: 38 

 39 
Section 2. The City of Salisbury’s Grant Fund Budget be and hereby is amended as follows: 40 
(a)   Increase CDBG Revenue Account No. 12800–423300–XXXXX by $17,796.00; and 41 
(b)   Increase CDBG Operating Expense Account No. 12800–546006–XXXXX by $17,796.00. 42 

 43 
BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, 44 

MARYLAND, as follows: 45 
Section 3.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision of this 46 

Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 47 
 48 



Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, 49 
paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise 50 
unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, paragraph, 51 
subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed 52 
valid and enforceable. 53 

Section 5.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as if such recitals 54 
were specifically set forth at length in this Section 5. 55 

Section 6.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 56 
 57 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury held 58 
on the _______ day of ______________, 2021 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance having been 59 
published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council of the City of Salisbury on the _______ 60 
day of ________________, 2021. 61 
 62 
ATTEST: 63 
 64 
 65 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 66 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 67 
 68 
 69 
 70 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2021. 71 
 72 
 73 
 74 
_____________________________ 75 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 76 
 77 



 

 

 

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 
From:  Jana Potvin, Department of Field Operations 
Date: September 9, 2021 
Re:  Poplar Hill Mansion Wheelchair Lift Funding Request 
             
 

The Department of Field Operations respectfully requests approval of a budget amendment in 

the amount of $35,000.00 to cover the installation of wheelchair accessible lift and associated 

improvements for the Poplar Hill Mansion. 

 

In FY 21, $40,000 was authorized for the construction of an accessibility ramp and an ADA 

compliant restroom.  The restroom improvements were completed; however, the ramp was not.  

In September 2020, the Maryland Historic Trust (MHT) informed the City that the proposed ADA 

compliant ramp was denied. The MHT requested that we “explore alternatives to the proposed 

ramp such as a lift, which would have less visual and physical impact on the historic resource.” 

 

With an initial estimate of $45,000 for the installation of an incline lift and $20,722.72 remaining 

in the project account, the are insufficient funds to complete the project. The transfer of these 

funds is critical for Department of Field Operations to provide an accessible entrance.  Without 

ADA accessibility, the Mansion will no longer be eligible for certain grants and other Federal 

benefits. 

 

Unless you or the Mayor have further questions, please forward a copy of this memo and the 

ordinance to the City Council.   
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2687 1 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY APPROVING AN 2 
AMENDMENT OF THE CITY’S FY22 GENERAL FUND BUDGET 3 
AND THE CAPITAL PROJECT FUND BUDGET TO ALLOCATE 4 
FUNDING FOR THE POPLAR HILL ADA RAMP AND BATHROOM 5 
CONVERSION PROJECT.  6 

WHEREAS, the Poplar Hill Mansion is listed on the National Register of Historic Places; and 7 
WHEREAS, the Maryland Historic Trust, an office of the Maryland Department of Planning, must 8 

review and approve projects involving rehabilitation or improvements to such historic properties, which 9 
includes, but is not limited to, the Poplar Hill Mansion; and 10 

WHEREAS, in FY2021, the City undertook a project to make the Poplar Hill Mansion handicap 11 
accessible, to include the conversion of a bathroom and the installation of a wheelchair ramp, both of which 12 
were to be compliant with guidelines set forth by the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”); 13 

WHEREAS, the FY2021 Budget appropriated $40,000 for the ADA bathroom conversion and 14 
installation of the wheelchair ramp; and  15 

WHEREAS, the City submitted a request for project approval to the Maryland Historic Trust, 16 
which denied the City of Salisbury’s request to install a wheelchair ramp; and 17 

WHEREAS, the Maryland Historic Trust instead requested the City explore alternatives to the 18 
proposed wheelchair ramp such as a wheelchair lift; and 19 

WHEREAS, the ADA bathroom conversion has been completed and the cost of a wheelchair lift 20 
exceeds the available funds remaining in the project account; and 21 

WHEREAS, the Department of Field Operations estimates an additional $35,000 is 22 
required for the project, and has determined that there are insufficient funds available in other 23 
accounts to transfer to cover the amount required, and 24 

WHEREAS, the Department of Finance has confirmed that an additional $35,000 is 25 
available in the current year surplus; and  26 

WHEREAS, providing ADA compliant access to the Poplar Hill Mansion is critical to 27 
future eligibility for grants and other Federal benefits.   28 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 29 
CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 30 
  31 

Section 1.   32 
a) The City of Salisbury’s Capital Projects Fund Budget be and is hereby amended as follows: 33 

 34 
 
Project Description 

Account 
Description  

 
Account 

 
Amount 

Poplar Hill ADA 
Ramp & Bathroom 
Conversion 

Transfer-In General 
Fund  

98022-469313-43028 35,000 

Poplar Hill ADA 
Ramp & Bathroom 
Conversion 

Construction 98122-513026-43028 35,000 

 35 
b) The City of Salisbury’s FY22 General Fund Budget be and is hereby amended as follows: 36 

 37 
 
Project Description 

Account 
Description  

 
Account 

 
Amount 

 Current Year Surplus  01000-469810 35,000 
 Transfer-Out General 

Capital Project Fund  
91001-599109 35,000 



BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 1 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 2 

Section 2.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision 3 
of this Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 4 

Section 3.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any 5 
section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, 6 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication 7 
shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other 8 
provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 9 

Section 4.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as 10 
if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 4. 11 

Section 5.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 12 
 13 
THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City 14 

of Salisbury held on the ______ day of ___________, 2021 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of 15 
the Ordinance having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council 16 
of the City of Salisbury on the _____ day of _____________, 2021. 17 
 18 
 19 
ATTEST: 20 
 21 
 22 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 23 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2021. 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
_____________________________ 32 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 33 



 

 
 
 

 

 

 

To: City Council 

From: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 

Subject: Budget Amendment to Add Position 

Date: September 15, 2021 

 

During the 2017 City reorganization two deputy city administrators positions were created. Over 

time and working through the new organization structure the Administration learned that a cleaner 

chain of command existed with only one deputy city administrator. We did realize at the time that 

there were gaps in the area of communication and public relations so we created the position of 

Social Media Specialists to our communications team. This was an incredible addition to our team 

and has enabled the City to be forward thinking when it comes to communication strategy. 

 

Continuing with building the strongest team possible, another gap that has been glaring over the 

years has been that in the area of senior level project management, policy development, and 

governmental affairs on the State and Federal level. Before the Council is the opportunity for the 

City to become more effective and efficient in developing new and improved legislation, internal 

policy for employees, lobbying in Annapolis, securing federal financial earmarks with the addition of 

the position Special Assistant for Intergovernmental Affairs. This position will report directly to the 

Deputy City Administrator and work closely with the Administration to focus on the above areas. 

We believe the Council, and the City at large, will immediately see the benefits of this additional 

position upon approving this budget amendment 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions.  

 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2688 1 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY APPROVING AN 2 
AMENDMENT OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY’S FY22 GENERAL FUND 3 
BUDGET FOR THE ADDITION OF THE POSITION OF SPECIAL 4 
ASSISTANT FOR INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS.   5 

WHEREAS, the Mayor’s office has determined a need for a new position to be titled “Special Assistant 6 
for Intergovernmental Affairs”; and 7 

WHEREAS, this position will enable the City to become more effective and efficient in developing new 8 
and improved legislation, internal policy for employees, lobbying in Annapolis, securing federal 9 
financial earmarks 10 

WHEREAS, to fund the salary and benefits for the remainder of the year the Department of Finance has 11 
estimated $39,600 is required, and.   12 

WHEREAS, the Mayor’s office budget does not currently have sufficient funds to cover the additional 13 
cost of the new position. 14 

 15 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 16 

OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 17 
  18 

Section 1.   19 
a) The City of Salisbury’s Authorized Positions be amended to include an additional position titled 20 

“Special Assistant for Intergovernmental Affairs” and be assigned Grade 8   21 
b) The City of Salisbury’s FY22 General Fund Budget be and is hereby amended as follows: 22 

 23 
 
Department 

Account 
Description  

 
Account 

 
Amount 

 Current Year Surplus  01000-469810 39,600 
Mayor’s Office  Salaries  12000-501001 39,600 

BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 24 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 25 

Section 2.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision of this 26 
Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 27 

Section 3.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, 28 
paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or 29 
otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to the 30 
section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this Ordinance shall 31 
remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 32 

Section 4.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as if such 33 
recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 4. 34 

Section 5.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 35 
 36 
THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of 37 

Salisbury held on the ______ day of ___________, 2021 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the 38 
Ordinance having been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council of the 39 
City of Salisbury on the _____ day of _____________, 2021. 40 
 41 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 42 
[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE PAGE THAT FOLLOWS] 43 

 44 
 45 



ATTEST: 1 
 2 
 3 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 4 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2021. 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
_____________________________ 13 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 14 


	Agenda
	Res 3127
	Res 3128
	Public Hearing - East Lincoln Ave
	Ord 2681 2R
	Ord 2682 2R
	Ord 2683
	Ord 2685
	Ord 2686
	Ord 2687
	Ord 2688



